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redacted and, therefore, presents incomplete data and analysis. We strongly disagree, 
however, that presentations made by the BWS are confusing or misleading to the 
public. The BWS carefully reviews all information available, utilizes highly-skilled 
technical teams to analyze this information and is transparent regarding the analyses 
conducted and the conclusions derived therefrom. As noted, the BWS does at times 
have to make some assumptions regarding missing data, but the BWS always explains 
such assumptions and their import to the analysis presented. The BWS welcomes the 
opportunity to work with the Regulatory Agencies to ensure that it has access to 
complete information to inform its analysis and to help the public understand the current 
conditions. 

We agree with the Regulatory Agencies that the sharing of all available data would 
provide the most complete information for understanding the condition of our 
irreplaceable groundwater aquifer, its flow, and the extent of the contamination caused 
by releases from the RHBFSF. The Navy should no longer be allowed to withhold any 
information critical to understanding and evaluating the extent of the environmental 
contamination caused by military operations at the RHBFSF. Continued requests for the 
BWS to enter into a nondisclosure agreement are counterproductive and as recognized 
by the EPA in your October 17, 2024, letter, wholly unnecessary to facilitate the sharing 
of environmental data and analyses. The BWS reiterates its longstanding request that 
we be provided with all environmental data, information, and analyses related to the 
RHBFSF in unredacted form. 

The lack of timely and complete information sharing by the Navy directly impacts our 
ability to determine the ultimate fate and transport of pollutants from the RHBFSF, 
evaluate the extent of the resulting groundwater contamination, and assess the risks of 
this contamination reaching BWS drinking water wells. More egregiously, the BWS 
cannot even rely upon Navy deliverables to bridge the data gap because, despite 
having a decade to do so, the Navy still has not completed (or made available for 
subject matter expert or public review) a defensible conceptual site model or 
groundwater model. Indeed, the Navy's latest September 24, 2024, RHBFSF 
groundwater model report suffers from the same overredaction of environmental 
information (e.g., pumping locations and rates), as previously-rejected Navy modeling 
reports. The Navy should reproduce its September 2024 RHBFSF groundwater model 
report in unredacted form so that the public and subject matter experts like the BWS 
can ensure that the data collected and analyses prepared by the Navy inform critical 
water use planning and resource management priorities for the people of Oahu. 

In the absence of sound technical analyses, there is a real need for increased sampling 
frequency of Red Hill monitoring wells and Navy production wells. Accordingly, we 
stand on our prior request for the Regulatory Agencies to require the Navy to conduct 
weekly sampling of all such wells for laboratory analysis of all of the contaminants of 
concern, including PFAS (as we understand that only a subset of Navy wells are tested 
on a quarterly basis for PFAS). The BWS strongly recommends that all Navy wells, 
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including the 38 Navy monitoring wells referenced in your October 17, 2024, letter, be 
tested on a weekly basis for PFAS. While the BWS did not specifically request that any 
independent third-party to conduct this testing, the BWS does believe that independent 
sampling and laboratory verification by a third-party analytical chemist that is not 
employed by the Department of Defense would help to promote transparency and 
increase the level of public confidence in the Navy's reported water sampling results. 
We further request that, for our own confidence in understanding regional groundwater 
quality, BWS personnel be permitted to collect our own water samples during the 
weekly Navy sampling and use our contract laboratory to perform additional analytical 
testing. 

Closing 

Although we may not always agree on every Red Hill issue, the BWS appreciates its 
longstanding, collaborative relationship with the EPA and DOH. By working together, we 
can all do our part to safeguard Oahu's water supply so that safe and dependable 
drinking water remains available for present and future generations. If you have any 
questions, please contact Mr. Erwin Kawata, Deputy Manager, at (808) 7 48-5066. 

Very truly yours, 

�K� 

cc: Rear Admiral Stephen Barnett 
Commander 
Navy Region Hawai'i 

Manager and Chief Engineer 

850 Ticonderoga Street, Suite 110 
JBPHH, Hawai'i 96860-5101 

Mr. Na'alehu Anthony, BWS Board Chair 
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